
21 September 2018

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on

Monday, 1 October 2018
beginning at

7:00 pm
in the

Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

TO: Councillor Cynthia Garton (Chair)
Councillor Janice Asman (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Margaret Allingham Councillor Carol Boulton
Councillor Ian Corben Councillor Richard Gomer
Councillor Keith House Councillor Lucy Jurd
Councillor Rupert Kyrle Councillor Derek Pretty
Councillor Bruce Tennent Councillor Adrian Trace

Staff Contacts: Amy Stephens, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 8273; 
Email: Amy.stephens@eastleigh.gov.uk

Julia Birt, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8437; Email: 
julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

_____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings

as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the 
meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To 

register please contact the Democratic Services Officer above.
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording 

and photography at meetings open to the public, and that Councillors will be 
using tablet devices to access committee papers.

Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA

1. Public Participation    

2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2018. 

3. Apologies    

4. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

5. Chair's report    

6. Local Area Manager's Report    

7. Financial Management    (Pages 7 - 10)

8. Presentation on Planning Guidelines    

9. Planning Application - Open space at Ratcliffe Road, Hedge End    (Pages 11 - 18) 

Change of use of part open space into 7no. additional car parking spaces 
(resulting in a total of 13no. car parking spaces) with associated landscaping 
works. (Ref: F/18/83554)
 

10. Planning Application - Itchen Valley Country Park, West End    (Pages 19 - 26) 

Display of 2no. non-illuminated entrance welcome signs, 4no. non-illuminated 
galley flag signs and 2no. non-illuminated fascia signs to Woodland Café. (Ref: 
A/18/83891) 

11. Planning Appeals     

The Legal Services Manager to report:-

(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:-

10 Romill Close, West End – Appeal against the Council’s refusal of 
planning permission for the erection of a detached 1no. one bedroom 
dwelling with associated access and parking on land to the rear of 10 Romill 
Close. (Ref: F/18/82388)

This was a delegated decision. 

(b) that the following appeals have been allowed:-

1 Kinsbourne Way, Thornhill – Appeal against the Council’s refusal for a 
single storey rear extension (Ref: F/17/82176)



This was a delegated decision. 

(c) that the following appeals have been dismissed:-

9 Bursledon Road, Hedge End – Appeal against the Council’s refusal of 
conversion of existing house to create 1no. pair of semi-detached dwellings, 
comprising 1no. 3 bed and 1no. 2 bed, including erection of rear single 
storey extensions and rear two storey extensions and associated car 
parking. (Ref: F/17/80539)

This was a delegated decision. 

1 Kinsbourne Way, Thornhill – Appeal against the Council’s refusal for the 
construction of a new three bedroom dwelling (Ref: F/17/82176)

This was a delegated decision. 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 5 November 2018 at 7:00 pm

in the Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's 
Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Monday, 23 July 2018  (7:00 pm – 8:49 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Garton (Chair); Councillors Asman, Allingham, Boulton, Gomer, 
Jurd, Pretty, Tennent and Trace

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Corben, House and 
Kyrle

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

14. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation on this occasion.

15. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2018 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

16. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 

17. LOCAL AREA REPORT

The Chair reported the following;

Local Plan Consultation

The three Local Plan ‘drop in’ sessions in Hedge End, West End and 
Botley (HEWEB) had been well attended by local people. Residents were 
encouraged to register their views on the proposals via the Council’s 
website or by letter to the Council. The consultation was still open and 
would end at midnight on 6 August 2018.
 
Itchen Valley Country Park

Itchen Valley Country Park had been awarded a Green Flag for the 10th 
year in succession. The Green Flag was awarded by the Keep Britain Tidy 
charity for achieving the highest standards in terms of operating the Park 
and providing first class facilities. The Chair provided thanks to the staff for 

1

Agenda Item 2



2

their hard work and commitment in an exceptionally difficult year during 
which the new build project had been undertaken and extensive forestry 
works had been completed.
   
“Budgens” Hedge End

The Committee had previously refused planning permission for an 
application on the old Budgens site in Hedge End. This was the subject of 
a planning inquiry which would be held from Tuesday 13 November. The 
likely venue was the Ageas Bowl and attendance by local people, groups 
and organisations in support of the Committee’s refusal decision and to 
demonstrate the scale of local objection was welcomed.

Land west of Woodhouse Lane

Hampshire County Council had just submitted a “hybrid” planning 
application for educational and residential facilities at the site. The 
proposals included full planning approval for a Year 7 form entry 
secondary school with the ability to expand to a Year 9 form entry if 
required. This application was out for consultation with full details on the 
Borough Council’s website.

HEWEB Community Grants

The annual community grants, funded by this Committee, could be applied 
for from September 2018. Details regarding this process would be 
uploaded onto the Council’s website.

Parksport

The Council’s hugely popular summer activities scheme for 8 - 16 year 
olds would start on 30 July 2018 until 31 August 2018. This year’s 
programme included a host of activities such as netball, cricket, dance, 
basketball, tennis and football in addition to the free skate jam at 
Woodhouse Lane and free swimming at Wildern.

18. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Consideration was given to the report of the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
Item 6) which recommended funding that would support projects which 
met identified local needs. The projects would also contribute to the 
achievement of corporate priorities. 

RESOLVED –

(1) That the contribution of £300 towards the Community Games 
to be held at Moorgreen Recreation Ground be approved;

(2) That the funding of £2,119 for the hardstanding at Waterbeech 
Drive adjacent to properties 12-18 be approved; and

2



3

(3) That the funding of £1,500 for the repair of the Bird’s Nest Tree 
play structure at Itchen Valley Country Park be approved. 

19. TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER

Consideration was given to the report of the Environment Lead Specialist 
(Agenda Item 7) which provided an update on new waiting restrictions 
which had been proposed in Cheping Gardens, Westward Road, Beattie 
Rise, Cheltenham Gardens, Pretoria Road, Upper St. Helen’s Road and 
The Pavilions. 

RESOLVED –

(1) That, given the objections received, the removal of Cheltenham 
Gardens and Pretoria Road from the various order be 
approved;

(2) That the proposals for Westward Road, Beattie Rise and 
Cheping Gardens as advertised be approved;

(3) That an experimental order with a review at 6 months and that 
a decision be taken after 18 months following consultation and 
analysis of the feedback for Cheltenham Gardens be approved;

(4) That the new proposals for traffic regulation at the junction of 
Pretoria Road and St. John’s Road with the issues further 
along and at the opposite end of Pretoria Road being 
considered separately at a later date be approved;

(5) That an experimental order subject to comment and agreement 
from the developer, Barratts, at The Pavilions (old Moorgreen 
Hospital site) be approved; and 

(6) That an experimental order subject to the review of feedback 
for Upper St. Helen’s Road in consultation with ward 
councillors be approved.

20. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES

Development Management staff gave a short presentation on guidelines 
that had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; 
in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  
This was set against the broader policy framework.

21. PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND TO THE NORTH WEST OF 
BOORLEY GREEN, WINCHESTER ROAD

The Committee considered the report of the Lead Specialist for Housing 
and Development (Agenda item 9) concerning an application for variation 

3



4

of condition 12 of outline planning permission (O/15/75953) to enable foul 
drainage to be carried out in accordance with either the approved Flood 
Risk Assessment (Dec 2014) or details set out in the Foul Sewerage 
Assessment (March 2018 ref M380-Doc 05) (Ref: X/18/82986).

The Committee was advised of the following updates;

Additional information had been received in response to consultation and 
neighbour comments received and to provide further information on the 
operation and maintenance of the waste water treatment works, as well as 
additional landscape visuals and revised landscaping details.

A number of additional consultation responses had been received from 
Landscape, Environmental Health, Botley Parish Council, Hamble Parish 
Council, Solent Protection Society and Botley Parish Action Group.  

The following amendments to conditions 36, 37 and 38 had been made;

“36) Prior to the installation of any on-site waste water treatment works a 
detailed implementation plan showing how sewage will be dealt with and 
how the plant operation shall be implemented up to full operation on site 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The on-site waste water treatment works shall be installed and 
used in accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  To enable the noise and odour impacts to be appropriately 
managed in order to protect residential amenities.

37) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a 
detailed assessment of noise impacts arising from the development, and a 
detailed noise mitigation scheme to address noise impacts to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The method of 
assessment and noise mitigation to be achieved shall be agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the submission of the noise 
mitigation scheme.  The approved noise mitigation measures shall be fully 
installed and verified as performing as required prior to the on-site waste 
water treatment works coming into use, and shall thereafter be retained in 
perpetuity.  Where noise monitoring is deemed necessary to demonstrate 
compliance with the mitigation scheme, this shall be carried out in the 
manner agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To enable the noise impacts to be appropriately managed in 
order to protect residential amenities.

38) Prior to commencement of development on any on-site waste water 
treatment works details of a scheme of works to protect the occupants of 
the proposed dwellings from odours arising on the sewage treatment 
works site, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The development hereby permitted shall not be 

4



5

occupied until verification that the approved scheme has been fully 
implemented has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority and the approved scheme shall be retained for the 
duration of the development.

Reason: To protect residential amenities.”

An additional condition had been added; 

“39) The landscaping of the on-site waste water treatment works and its 
surroundings shall be carried out in accordance with drawing MILL21068 
20 rev J – Sheet 1.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to 
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents.”

RESOLVED:

That the application be PERMITTED, subject to: 

(1) Completion of Deed of Variation to ensure requirements of 
original Section 106 associated with O/15/75953 still apply;

(2) Confirmation from Secretary of State that they do not intend to 
call the application in; and

(3) The recommended, amended and additional conditions as set 
out above and in the report. 

(NOTES: a) Councillor Colin Mercer, on behalf of Botley Parish Council, 
spoke in objection to the application citing concerns regarding odour, 
noise, risk of a fracture to the equipment and the scale and size of the 
plant which had not been tested; and b) the agent spoke in support of the 
application.) 

22. PLANNING APPLICATION - TWINOAKS GUEST HOUSE, HEDGE END

The Committee considered the report of the Lead Specialist for Housing 
and Development (Agenda item 10) concerning an application for Change 
of use  from Guest House (Use Class C1) to children's care home facility 
(use Class C2). (Ref: F/18/83174) 

RESOLVED -

That the application be PERMITTED subject to the recommended 
conditions.

(NOTE: Six members of the public spoke in objection citing concerns 
regarding noise disturbance, increased likelihood of antisocial behaviour, 
highway safety, impact on current traffic and parking issues, the number of 

5



6

traffic movements in and out of the building, the possible detrimental 
impact on the children placed at the address and concerns for their safety 
due to the high level of traffic and noise in the area, potential for change of 
use by the applicant once permitted, the use of the outbuilding and impact 
on neighbours from this and boundary issues and maintenance of the 
current boundary planting.)

23. FOOTPATH DIVERSION, BOORLEY GREEN

The Committee considered an additional urgent item regarding a public 
footpath diversion of Botley Footpath No 2, Boorley Green. Members were 
asked to approve the processing of the Order so that changes could be 
made to the footpath which would then allow the development to progress. 

RESOLVED – 

That authorisation be given for the processing of an Order under 
Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for the 
diversion of Public Footpath Botley No2 as necessary to facilitate the 
construction of development granted planning permission.(Ref: 
O/12/71514, R/14/74872, R/15/77552 R/15/77595, R/16/79470)

1. FIELD_TITLEFIELD_TITLE

6



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

1 October 2018

 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

   Report of the Local Area Manager 

Recommendations

It is recommended that this Committee:

(1) approves a contribution of £300 towards the Week of Action during 
October half term;

(2) approves funding of £5,161 for the installation of entrance barriers at 
Hedge End Train Station

(3) approves funding of £1,733 for the dropped kerb crossing at Downscroft 
Gardens; and

(4) notes the Chair’s approval for emergency repair works of £392 for the 
boardwalk behind Berrywood School.

Summary
The recommended funding will support projects which meet identified local needs. The 
projects will also contribute to the achievement of corporate priorities.

Statutory Powers
Section1 Localism Act 2011 

Strategic Implications

1. The proposed projects contribute to the Council’s strategic priorities especially 
in relation to Enabling Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing by encouraging 
young people to take part in the Week of Action for physical activity and 
mental wellbeing. The Downscroft Gardens’ crossing will encourage the use 
of sustainable forms of transport. All of the projects are based on local need 
and are therefore in accordance with the Local First project.

7

Agenda Item 7



Week of Action

2. At the recent Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) Youth Partnership, 
the Chair, PC Jason Steel discussed an initiative led by Hampshire 
Constabulary. This initiative is called a Week of Action and it will involve a 
programme of leisure activities for young people during the forthcoming 
October half term. 

3. Members of the Youth Partnership will be providing their facilities in kind and a 
grant application to the Partnership requesting £300 will also be submitted to 
cover some of the costs. It is therefore recommended that this Committee 
provides match funding.

4. Councillors are therefore requested to approve expenditure of £300 from the 
youth initiatives’ revenue budget.

Hedge End Train Station

5. The train station car park is a “devolved” facility to the HEWEB Local Area 
Committee. As such the Committee is responsible for income generation and 
costs associated with the facility. For example, recently the car park lights 
were replaced and painting of the entrance ramps was undertaken.  

6. In order to ensure that the car park regulations regarding usage are enforced, 
it is recommended that entrance height restriction barriers are installed.

7. An initial estimate has been provided by the Council’s Direct Services team of 
£5,161. 

8. Further consultation is required with the Council’s Planning Team; the catering 
concessionaire and South Western Railway before final location details can 
be agreed. However this Committee is asked to approve funding by allocating 
this developer’s contribution:- 

DC F/1576668 30 Bursledon Road, Hedge End £5161.46. Received 
07/09/15

Downscroft Gardens

9. The footpath linking Turnpike Way to the Hedge End Retail Parks requires a 
dropped kerb crossing at Downscroft Gardens .This will enable better access 
for cyclists and pedestrians especially those with prams/buggies and shopping 
trolleys and people with disabilities.

10. Councillors are requested to approve funding of £1,733 to enable the 
completion of this scheme by allocating the following developer’s 
contribution:-

DC F/09/64996 Kingsbridge Property Development, 41 Wildern Lane, 
Hedge End. £1,733.48. Received 08/06/09.

8



Berrywood Boardwalk

11. The boardwalk behind Berrywood School was in need of urgent repair as 
several planks of wood had rotted. These have now been replaced and the 
Boardwalk is fully open.

12. Given the urgency of these works, the Chair has approved expenditure from 
this Committee’s revenue budget of £392 and Councillors are asked to note 
this approval.

Financial Implications

13. All of the recommended funding streams can be afforded using this 
Committee’s revenue budget and developers’ contributions where stated.

Risk Assessment

14. There is a reputational and financial risk if the barriers are not installed at the 
train station. Also if funding is not allocated for the other projects, the 
Council’s corporate and local priorities will not be met.

Equality and Diversity Implications

15. The Equality Act is most relevant to the Week of Action initiative as the project 
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity and 
fostering good relations between different people. An Equality Impact 
Assessment will be carried out by the members of the HEWEB Youth 
Partnership. The improved crossing point at Downscroft Gardens will assist a 
significant number of people within the community as stated.

Conclusion

16. The Committee is asked to approve the recommendations as outlined.  

JULIA BIRT
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 10 September 2018
Contact Officer: Julia Birt
Tel No: 023 8068 8437
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

9



The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information

10



HEWEB – Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee Monday 1 
October 2018.

Application Number: F/18/83554
Case Officer: Rosie Rivers
Received Date: Tuesday 3 July 2018
Site Address: Open space at Ratcliffe Road, Hedge End, Southampton, 

SO30 4HB
Applicant: Ian Austin
Proposal: Change of use of part open space into 7no. additional car 

parking spaces (resulting in a total of 13no. car parking 
spaces) with associated landscaping works

Recommendation: Permit

CONDITIONS AND REASONS

1 The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the following plans numbered: EC/01775/002 Rev C, EC/01775/003, 
EC/01775/004 Rev A.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2 The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the 
date of this decision.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.

3 No excavation, demolition or development related works shall take place on site 
until a Tree Planting Plan and Planting Method Statement, as per British 
Standard 8545:2014, have been submitted and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority to formalise the proposed new tree plantings. The approved 
documents must be adhered to in full, and may only be modified subject to 
written agreement from the Local Planning Authority. Tree planting must take 
place as soon as possible after completion of the proposed development and 
no later than the start of the following planting season. If, for a period of no less 
than 10 years after planting, trees which are removed, die or become seriously 
damaged shall be replaced as soon as reasonably practicable with others of the 
same species, size and number as originally approved. Reason: to maintain 
and enhance local tree canopy cover.
 

4 Not withstanding the approved plans no development shall start until details of 
the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 
development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the 
amenities of the area.

11

Agenda Item 9



Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (July 2018), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner.

Report:

This application has been referred to Committee because the application has been 
submitted by the Council. 

Description of Application

1. The application proposes a change of use of part of an area of open space 
to allow for additional car parking spaces. The land would be hard 
surfaced and 7 car parking spaces are proposed. Due to existing hard 
surfacing the proposal would result in 13 spaces in total on the site.

2. Bird lip fencing and earth bunds are proposed around the new car parking 
area. 

3. An existing tree would be removed and the planting of 8 new trees is 
proposed.

Site Characteristics

4. The site consists of an area of open green space with residential dwellings 
surrounding the open space. The open space is grassed with two trees on 
the site. There is open fencing to the west of the open space. There is an 
area of hard surfacing to the west of the site currently used for parking.

5. The properties surrounding the site consist of two storey semi-detached 
dwellings. The properties surrounding this open space are accessed via a 
footpath and generally do not have parking to the front of the properties. 
One of the properties has created an access and parking to the front of the 
site through a historic planning permission.

Relevant Planning History

6. None

Representations Received

7. Two letters of comment have been received raising questions of whether 
the spaces will be allocated and the fencing surrounding the spaces.

Consultation Responses

12



8. Council’s Tree officer – No objection, subject to a condition

9. County Highway Authority – No objection, recommend fencing around 
spaces 7 and 13 is pushed slightly further away for the side of the parking 
spaces to enable doors to be fully opened.

10.Hedge End Town Council – No objection

Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site

 Within Built-up Area Boundary
 Within Established Residential Area

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved Policies: 
59.BE

Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014

11.The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for 
examination in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient 
housing was being provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  While 
this has not been withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can 
therefore be considered to have extremely limited weight in the 
determination of this application.

Emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036

12.The Council is at the pre-Submission publication stage (Regulation 19) of 
the emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan for the Period 2016 – 2036. 
The public consultation period ran until 8 August 2018 and submission to 
the Secretary of State is scheduled for Autumn 2018. The adoption of the 
Local Plan is anticipated in Summer 2019.  Given the status of the 
emerging Plan, it is considered that limited weight can be attributed to it.

Supplementary Planning Documents

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011)
 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 

(January 2009)

National Planning Policy Framework

13.At a national level, The National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’) 
is a material consideration of significant weigh in the determination of 
panning applications.

Comment on Consultation Responses and Representations Received

13



14.See below

Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background

15.Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, Section 38(6) 
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and Paragraph 11 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) :-
"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination 
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise."

16. In this case policy issues for consideration include:
Principle

17.The site is located within the urban edge where the principle of 
development is considered to be acceptable subject to the design and 
impact of the proposal in accordance with the relevant Local Plan 
policies and supplementary planning documents. 

18.Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and 
proper account of the context of the site including the character and 
appearance of the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, 
layout, design and siting.  It also requires a high standard of landscape 
design, have a satisfactory means of access and layout for vehicles, 
cyclist and pedestrians, make provision for refuse and cycle storage 
and avoid unduly impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking, 
loss of light, loss of outlook, noise and fumes.

Layout, design and impact on the character of the area
19.The site is located towards the end of Ratcliffe Road and is an area of 

green space surrounded by houses. The site is not a formal area of 
open space for recreational purposes but is an amenity area for the 
local residents. 

20.The application is supported by a planning statement which explains 
that over the last 5 years the residents have had a number of issues 
with parking which has led to anti-social behaviour and a number of 
complaints to the Council regarding parking. A meeting has been held 
between the Council and the local residents to try to resolve the issues 
raised and the current application has been submitted following the 
outcome of the meeting.

21. It is noted that the properties surrounding the open space do not have 
parking for the dwellings, no.52 has created parking to the front of the 
site through a historic permission and other properties have created 
parking in the rear garden accessed via Allen Road. It is therefore noted 
that there is a lack of parking for a number of properties within this part 
of Ratcliffe Road.  There is an area of hardstanding adjacent to the 

14



open space that is currently being used for parking. The application 
would formalise this parking area and increase the hardstanding to 
allow for more parking spaces. 13 spaces would be created in total. 

22. It is acknowledged that the proposal would diminish part of this open 
space to allow for the proposed car parking. The use of an area of open 
spaces for additional parking would not normally be considered to be 
acceptable. However, it is noted that there are a number of properties 
within this area with no parking. The proposal would result in the loss of 
part of the open spaces, however, a significant portion of the green 
space would be maintained and more tree planting is proposed on the 
site which would maintain the green appearance of this section of 
Ratcliffe Road.

23. It is therefore considered, on balance, that due to the number of houses 
with no parking, the significant parking issues and the amount of green 
open space maintained on the site the proposal is considered to be 
acceptable and would not impact on the character of the area to warrant 
a reason for refusal.

Impact on residential amenity 
24.The application proposes to increase the area of hard standing to allow 

for parking. This would be positioned further into the area of green 
space. It is considered that as the existing access road and parking is 
located in close proximity to the proposed location of the parking, the 
proposed additional parking area would not result in noise and 
disturbance to the occupiers of the residential dwellings and therefore 
the proposal is not considered to cause material harm to the amenities 
of the neighbouring properties in accordance with Policy 59.BE of the 
Local Plan.

Trees

25.The open space has two trees, the proposal would result in the loss of one 
of the trees (a weeping ash). The application proposes to plant 8 new trees 
on the site. Following consultation with the County Tree Officer no 
objection has been raised to the application. The loss of a tree is 
regrettable, however, it is considered that the new planting on the site is 
acceptable subject to a condition regarding a maintenance regime in order 
to allow the trees to become established. It is considered that due to the 
additional planting proposed on the site, the loss of the tree would not 
impact on the character of the area and therefore the proposal complies 
with Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan.

Conclusion

26.While the loss of amenity space would not normally be considered 
acceptable, it is considered that due to the significant parking issues within 
the area and the level of green open space maintained, on balance, the 

15



proposal is not considered to impact on the character of the area to 
warrant a reason for refusal and therefore the proposal is considered to 
comply with Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan in this case.

16



17



This page is intentionally left blank



HEWEB – Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee Monday 1 
October 2018.

Application Number: A/18/83891
Case Officer: Rosie Rivers
Received Date: Wednesday 22 August 2018
Site Address: ITCHEN VALLEY COUNTRY PARK, ALLINGTON LANE, 

WEST END
Applicant: Ian Austin
Proposal: Display of 2no. non-illuminated entrance welcome signs, 

4no. non-illuminated galley flag signs and 2no. non-
illuminated fascia signs to Woodland Cafe.

Recommendation: Consent to display adverts subject to the consideration of 
any further representations and consultation responses.

CONDITIONS AND REASONS

1 The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the following plans numbered: 01 and SU4615NW

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2 This consent is for five years from the date of this decision and is subject to the 
five standard conditions set out in the Regulations.

a) No advertisement to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the 
site (this includes land or buildings where the advertisement is displayed), or 
any other person with an interest in the site entitled to give permission.

b) The siting or display of an advertisement is prohibited if it endangers anyone 
using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome (civil or 
military), or would obscure or hinder the ready interpretation of any traffic sign, 
railway sign or aid to navigation by water or air. It also prohibits the siting or 
display of an advertisement that would hinder the operation of any device used 
for the purpose of security or surveillance (such as closed circuit television 
cameras), or for measuring the speed of any vehicles (speed cameras or other 
speeding measuring devices. 

c) The advertisement and any land or building used for the purpose of its 
display to be maintained in a reasonably clean and tidy condition so that it does 
not impact the visual amenity of the site.

d) Any structure or hoarding used for the display of advertisements to be 
maintained in a safe condition that does not endanger the public.

e) Following the removal of advertisement the site shall be left in a condition 
that does not endanger the public and in a reasonably clean and tidy condition 
so that it does not impact the site's visual amenity.

19

Agenda Item 10



Reason: To comply with the advertisement regulations.

Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (July 2018), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner.
 
Note to applicant: Bats are present within the Woodland cafe building. Any 
works to display the advertisements on the building must not disturb this 
protected species.

Report:

This application has been referred to Committee because the application has 
been submitted by the Council. 

Description of Application

1. The application is for the display of 2 welcome signs, 4 galley flag signs 
and 2 fascia signs on the Woodland Café. The signs are non-illuminated.

2. Sign 1  - sign board on posts, the sign measures 2m by 1m and is 
positioned on 2.4m high posts. The signs would be triangular in shape 
and would have the sign on three sides.

3. Sign 2 – sign boards on posts, consists of three separate signs. The 
signs measure 300mm by 1360mm and 1540mm by 1360mm

4. Signs 3, 4, 5, 6 – flag signs – the signs measure 1560mm by 495mm and 
are on wooden posts

5. Signs 7 and 8 – fascia signs on the front and rear of the café – measure 
600mm by 2630mm

6. The exiting welcome signs at the entrance to the Country Park will be 
removed. 

Site Characteristics

7. The site consists of an existing Country Park facility which is open to the 
general public. It comprises coniferous and broadleaf woodland wrapped 
around an area of amenity grassland with a visitors centre, woodland 
kindergarten, children play area, BBQ areas, and paths and trails for 
walkers, cyclists and horse riders. The site also contains a Go Ape 
course.

8. Most of the Country Park is designated as a Site of Importance for 

20



Nature Conservation (SINC). South of the site is open grazing land and 
to the west, beyond an area of woodland, flows the River Itchen.

9. There are existing welcome signs at the front of the site, directional signs 
and flag signs along the road when accessing the site. 

Relevant Planning History

10.A range of development has taken place within the Country Park to 
provide or improve the visitor experience.

11.Of most relevance to this application are:

12.A/13/72604 - Display of 1no. non-illuminated directional sign and 1no. 
non-illuminated hanging sign – Consent granted 15/07/2013

13.A/11/69269 - Display of 8no. directional signs, 2no. entrance signs, 3no. 
hanging signs and 1no. fascia sign (all non-illuminated) – Consent 
granted 14/09/2011

14.A/30618/005/00 – Display of 2 no. event boards at site entrance – 
Consent granted 30/11/2001

Representations Received

None received – consultation period expires on 22/09/18

Consultation Responses

15.None received - consultation period expires on 22/09/18

Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site

 Outside Built-up Area Boundary
 Strategic Gap
 Within Site of Nature Conservation Interest

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies

16.Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved Policies: 67.BE

Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014
 The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for 

examination in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that 
insufficient housing was being provided for in the Plan and that it 
was unsound.  While this has not been withdrawn and remains a 
material consideration, it can therefore be considered to have 
extremely limited weight in the determination of this application.

Emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036

21



 The Council is at the pre-Submission publication stage 
(Regulation 19) of the emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan for 
the Period 2016 – 2036. The current consultation stage runs from 
25 June until 6 August 2018 with submission to the Secretary of 
State scheduled for Autumn 2018. The adoption of the Local Plan 
is anticipated in Summer 2019.  Given the status of the emerging 
Plan, it is considered that limited weight can be attributed to it.

National Planning Policy Framework

17.The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states in paragraph 
132: The quality and character of places can suffer when advertisements 
are poorly sited and designed. A separate consent process within the 
planning system controls the display of advertisements, which should be 
operated in a way which is simple, efficient and effective. Advertisements 
should be subject to control only in the interests of amenity and public 
safety, taking account of cumulative impacts.

Policy Commentary

18.The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against 
which this application will be assessed with particular regard to visual 
amenity and character of the area, as well as public and highway safety.

Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background

19.Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
states:-
"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination 
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise."

20.Regulation 3 (1) (2) (3) (as amended) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Control of Advertisement) Regulations 2007 states: “A local planning 
authority shall exercise their powers under these Regulations only in the 
interests of amenity and public safety, taking account of any material 
factors, and in particular:

21. In the case of amenity, the general characteristics of the locality, 
including the presence of any feature of historic, architectural, cultural or 
similar interest, disregarding, if they think fit, any advertisement being 
displayed there;

22. In the case of public safety:

 The safety of any person who may use any road, railway, 
waterway, harbour or aerodrome;

22



 Whether any display of advertisement is likely to obscure, or 
hinder the ready interpretation of, any road traffic sign, railway 
signal or aid to navigation by water or air.

23. In determining an application for consent for the display of 
advertisements, or considering whether to make an order revoking or 
modifying a consent, the local planning authority may have regard to any 
material change in circumstances likely to occur within the period for 
which the consent is required or granted”.

Principle

24.Saved Policy 67.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-
2011 allows for the display of a hoarding, sign or advertisement provided 
that it does not detract from the character of the locality, is appropriate to 
its surroundings in terms of design, size, materials, colour, positioning, 
level of illumination and the extent of existing signage, and it does create 
a risk to public safety. The principle of the proposals is therefore 
considered to be acceptable subject to compliance with these specific 
criteria. 

Impact on amenity and the character of the area

25.Signs 1 and 2 are welcome signs to the front of the site that would 
replace the existing signs at the front of the site. It is considered that sign 
2 is similar in form and design to the existing signs on the site. It is 
considered that the proposed advertisements are acceptable in terms of 
their design, size and siting and would be in keeping with existing 
character of the country park.

26.Signs 3,4,5 and 6 are flag signs that would be positioned alongside the 
access road and within one of the parking areas. There are existing 
signs of this style and design within the Country Park. It is considered 
that the proposed signs are acceptable in terms of their design, size and 
materials and are in keeping with the existing signs within the site.

27.Signs 7 and 8 are fascia signs that are positioned on the front and rear of 
the café. The proposed sign are considered to be acceptable in terms of 
their design, size and positioning. 

28. It is considered that the proposed signs in combination with the existing 
signs on the site would not result in an over proliferation of adverts in this 
countryside location. The adverts are considered to be acceptable in 
terms of their scale and siting as well as their materials and design and 
would not detract from the character of the surrounding area. The 
proposals are therefore considered to comply with the requirements of 
Saved Policy 67.BE of the adopted Local Plan.

Public and Highway Safety

23



29.The proposed advertisements would be set back from the road and are 
positioned on the verge of the access drive. 

30.The proposal complies with the requirements of Saved Policy 67.BE of 
the adopted Local Plan in that it will not create a risk to either public or 
highway safety.

31.Protected species

32.Bats are located within the Woodland Café. The application is for 
advertisement consent and therefore only impact on amenity and 
highway safety can be considered as part of the application, however, an 
informative is recommended to remind the applicant that when carrying 
out works on the site any protected species must not be disturbed.

Conclusion

33.For the reasons as set out above, the proposals comply with the relevant 
legislation requirements,  saved and emerging Development Plan 
policies and national planning policy and it is therefore recommended 
that advertisement consent be granted. 

24



25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Financial Management
	9 Planning Application - Open space at Ratcliffe Road, Hedge End
	10 Planning Application - Itchen Valley Country Park, West End

